
Emilio Fernandez

From: Heidi Carr
Sent: Tuesday, 28 October 2014 4:32 PM
To: 'Fiona Hawthorne'
Subject: RE: Possible amendments to the Coroners Act 2003 regarding the investigation of stillbirths
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Absolutely. I think it probably needs to be finalised tomorrow. However, I have some other amendments to make in
the interim, so tomorrow should be fine. Thank you very much, Heidi.

Heidi Carr
Policy Advisor 
Strategic Policy 
Department of Justice and Attorney-General
Ph: 3239 6878

From: Fiona Hawthorne [mailto:Fiona.Hawthorne@health.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Tuesday, 28 October 2014 4:28 PM
To: Heidi Carr
Subject: RE: Possible amendments to the Coroners Act 2003 regarding the investigation of stillbirths

Hi Heidi,

No problem at all. I’ll get back to you tomorrow if that’s ok? F

From: Heidi Carr [mailto:Heidi.Carr@justice.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Tuesday, 28 October 2014 4:23 PM 
To: Fiona Hawthorne 
Subject: RE: Possible amendments to the Coroners Act 2003 regarding the investigation of stillbirths

Hi Fiona,

Apologies for another email….Just when you thought I wasn’t going to bother you again, I have some further
questions re stillbirths.

Previously Amber was advised that RCAs are used inconsistently across the Department of Health. Some areas
indicated that an RCA is prohibited for use for stillbirths, while other areas indicated RCAs could be used to investigate
stillbirths if it was deemed necessary. I understand the difficulty is stillbirths are not caught by the definition of a
reportable event in the HHB Act. However, I have been asked to clarify a few points.

In particular, with respect to the comment that RCAs are used inconsistently across the Department of Health – is the
reference to DoH just a reference to the department or is it supposed to capture Hospitals and Health Services (public
or private hospitals etc.) as well?

In relation to the comment that some areas indicate an RCA is prohibited and other areas indicate it could be used if
deemed necessary – can you clarify what the reference to ‘areas’ means (i.e. reference to the health district or region
etc.)?

Also, I have been asked to clarify who comprises the local perinatal mortality committees, their function and what
happens to their decisions or recommendations? Is the following an appropriate summary:

The local perinatal mortality committees are a multidisciplinary team comprised of expert staff from all maternity
and neonatal services within the local network (area/district?). The local committees audit stillborn child deaths in
Queensland public health facilities with reference to the Queensland Maternity and Neonatal Clinical Guideline:
‘Stillbirth care’. The results of the audit are provided to the Health Statistics Branch, and subsequently provided to
the QMPQC to compile a comprehensive report on perinatal mortality.

Thanks very much,
Heidi
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
Sent:Wednesday, 1 October 2014 5:04 PM
To: Heidi Carr
Subject: RE: Possible amendments to the Coroners Act 2003 regarding the investigation of stillbirths

Yes. The stillbirth may have occurred due to factors beyond the system or clinician’s control. This may be as a result of
a medical conditions that occur during delivery such as placental abruption or infarct or cord constriction, to name a
few. F

From: Heidi Carr [mailto:Heidi.Carr@justice.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 1 October 2014 4:48 PM 
To: Fiona Hawthorne 
Subject: RE: Possible amendments to the Coroners Act 2003 regarding the investigation of stillbirths

Hopefully one last question…when you say ‘The challenge with stillbirth is that it is very complex and can occur as a
result of unpredictable patient and/or fetal factors, nor as a result of clinician error’ are you indicating this as the
difficulty encountered with any form of review of stillbirths, and this means a review may not uncover systemic,
facility specific or practitioner specific factors?

Thanks,
Heidi

Heidi Carr
Policy Advisor 
Strategic Policy 
Department of Justice and Attorney-General
Ph: 3239 6878

From: Fiona Hawthorne [mailto:Fiona.Hawthorne@health.qld.gov.au]
Sent:Wednesday, 1 October 2014 4:25 PM
To: Heidi Carr
Subject: RE: Possible amendments to the Coroners Act 2003 regarding the investigation of stillbirths

Hmmm. Both are internal to QH, but the RCA etc are conducted by the HHS with an expectation that the report is
completed within 90 calendar days. The HHS generated reports are not released to the public and may be released to
the family if the commissioning authority approves it. The expert committees such as the QMPQC report to the public
once every 12 months, but do not address individual cases as they have a statewide focus.

Happy to keep chatting, F

From: Heidi Carr [mailto:Heidi.Carr@justice.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 1 October 2014 4:16 PM 
To: Fiona Hawthorne 
Subject: RE: Possible amendments to the Coroners Act 2003 regarding the investigation of stillbirths

That’s great. Thank you so much Fiona.

I certainly appreciate its complexity. I am attempting to simplify it, but want to ensure the information is still accurate.
Would it be better to differentiate between RCAs etc and the specialist committees on the basis that the former are
internal review mechanisms and the committees are external? Or simply list them all as review mechanisms?

Regards,
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
Sent:Wednesday, 1 October 2014 3:47 PM
To: Heidi Carr
Cc: Erin Finn
Subject: RE: Possible amendments to the Coroners Act 2003 regarding the investigation of stillbirths

Hi Heidi,

No problem at all. This is a complex issue to navigate around.

I’ll answer your questions in text below:

Essentially, I have outlined that there are a range of options available to review individual adverse clinical incidents
including – RCA, HEAPS, morbidity and mortality meetings and case reviews. There are then specialist review
committees who also look at systemic issues with respect to maternal and perinatal mortality, including stillbirths –
local perinatal mortality committees and the QMPQC.
It’s not technically correct to differentiate between RCAs etc and the specialist committees as they both have a
system focus. It is part of QH culture that we do not look to apportion individual blame. If a blameworthy act is found
during the course of the investigation, then there are other steps to take.

I have then discussed any issues with the current mechanisms. However, currently this only includes the issues we
discussed regarding HHS being able to decide how they wish to analyse adverse clinical incidents (so none of the
review mechanisms are mandatory? Correct), stillbirths not meeting the definition of reportable event under the HHB
Act for the purpose of RCA, the need for RCA to be specifically commissioned for stillbirths as a result and that
operationally this is unlikely to occur.
A form of review is mandatory. Which methodology is chosen is up to HHS.

I was just wondering whether you would be able to briefly indicate what each of the review mechanisms are (other
than RCA) and in particular whether there are any issues with the other mechanisms for stillbirths? Also, if any of the
above is incorrect, please do let me know.
HEAPS (Human Error and Patient Safety) is a methodology that reviews an incident under various headings to trigger a
more detailed review. Issues addressed include patient factors; task factors; practitioner factors, along with
environment, equipment to give the reviewer a more in depth appreciation for the context and circumstances of the
event.
Morbidity & Mortality reviews are formal meetings undertaken at a unit or discipline level by a group of clinicians
associated with the care of the patient. These are usually held monthly.
Case reviews are often undertaken by an individual clinician (usually of some seniority) to ascertain if the care
provided met established standards.
None of the above have privilege. The challenge with stillbirth is that it is very complex and can occur as a result of
unpredictable patient and/or fetal factors, nor as a result of clinician error.

I am at training Tuesday to Thursday next week, but my manager Erin Finn (who has been cc’d into this email) is
available to answer any further questions you may have. Thanks, Fiona

From: Heidi Carr [mailto:Heidi.Carr@justice.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 1 October 2014 12:08 PM 
To: Fiona Hawthorne 
Subject: RE: Possible amendments to the Coroners Act 2003 regarding the investigation of stillbirths

Hi Fiona,
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I apologise for bothering you again, but I just wanted to clarify my understanding of a number points for my policy
submission.

Essentially, I have outlined that there are a range of options available to review individual adverse clinical incidents
including – RCA, HEAPS, morbidity and mortality meetings and case reviews. There are then specialist review
committees who look at systemic issues with respect to maternal and perinatal mortality, including stillbirths – local
perinatal mortality committees and the QMPQC.

I have then discussed any issues with the current mechanisms. However, currently this only includes the issues we
discussed regarding HHS being able to decide how they wish to analyse adverse clinical incidents (so none of the
review mechanisms are mandatory?), stillbirths not meeting the definition of reportable event under the HHB Act for
the purpose of RCA, the need for RCA to be specifically commissioned for stillbirths as a result and that operationally
this is unlikely to occur.

I was just wondering whether you would be able to briefly indicate what each of the review mechanisms are (other
than RCA) and in particular whether there are any issues with the other mechanisms for stillbirths? Also, if any of the
above is incorrect, please do let me know.

Happy to discuss over the phone if you prefer, however, I thought I’d email first before bombarding you with
questions.

Thanks again for all of your assistance with this, much appreciated.

Kind regards,

Heidi Carr
Policy Advisor 
Strategic Policy 
Department of Justice and Attorney-General
Ph: 3239 6878

From: Fiona Hawthorne [mailto:Fiona.Hawthorne@health.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Thursday, 25 September 2014 4:42 PM
To: Heidi Carr
Subject: RE: Possible amendments to the Coroners Act 2003 regarding the investigation of stillbirths

Hi Heidi,

I’ll answer your questions below:

1.       Are you able to advise whether consideration has been or will be given to reinstating RCA’s as a central
requirement where there is concern with the obstetric or perinatal care provided? The current Health Service
Directive does not prescribe an RCA as a primary tool for the analysis for any adverse clinical incident. Each
HHS is able to decide how they wish to analysis these incidents. RCA is one tool for the analysis of adverse
clinical incidents. There are a number of others: HEAPS, morbidity & mortality meetings, case reviews
amongst others.

2.       Also, I note there was an internal review/investigation following the case. Are you able to
advise whether the outcome is part of the reason for the issues paper? No, the issues paper was in
development prior to the case.

3.       In addition, are you able to provide me with further information regarding the RCA process in the context of
stillbirths or direct me to where I can locate this information? The challenge with stillbirth is that it does not
meet the definition of a reportable event under the Hospital and Health Boards Act 2011, therefore any RCA
commissioned for a stillbirth does not attract privilege. I’m happy to chat this bit through. It can be a bit
wordy for an email.

We also have the Qld Maternal & Perinatal Quality Council which reports to the Queensland Health Minister, and has
a quality agenda which encompasses both public and private sectors. It is a gazetted quality committee under Part 6,
Sections 81 92 (Quality Assurance Committees) of the Hospital and Health Boards Act 2011. Membership includes
representation from neonatology, obstetrics, midwifery, neonatal nursing, specialist obstetrics/maternal fetal
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medicine, general practice obstetrics, Indigenous health, academic/research, consumer representation.

I have attached the section from their latest report for you to review. The link for the full report is:
http://www.health.qld.gov.au/caru/networks/qmpqc_publications.asp

The QMPQC’s purposes are to:
Collect and analyse clinical information regarding maternal and perinatal mortality and morbidity in Queensland to

identify state wide and facility specific trends
Make recommendations to the Minister for Health on standards and quality indicators of maternal and perinatal

clinical care to enable health providers in Queensland to improve safety and quality
Assist with the adoption of such standards in both public and private sectors

Let me know if you need any further information or want to have a chat about RCA and stillbirths.

Thanks, Fiona

From: Heidi Carr [mailto:Heidi.Carr@justice.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Thursday, 18 September 2014 4:41 PM 
To: Fiona Hawthorne 
Subject: RE: Possible amendments to the Coroners Act 2003 regarding the investigation of stillbirths

Hi Fiona,

Thank you very much for your response.

Further to the information provided, are you able to advise whether consideration has been or will be given to
reinstating RCA’s as a central requirement where there is concern with the obstetric or perinatal care provided? Also, I
note there was an internal review/investigation following the case. Are you able to advise whether the
outcome is part of the reason for the issues paper?

In addition, are you able to provide me with further information regarding the RCA process in the context of stillbirths
or direct me to where I can locate this information?

If you are not in a position to respond to the above, can you please advise who might be the appropriate person to
direct my questions?

Kind regards,

Heidi Carr
Policy Advisor 
Strategic Policy 
Department of Justice and Attorney-General
Ph: 3239 6878

From: Fiona Hawthorne [mailto:Fiona.Hawthorne@health.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Thursday, 18 September 2014 4:07 PM
To: Heidi Carr
Cc: Erin Finn
Subject: RE: Possible amendments to the Coroners Act 2003 regarding the investigation of stillbirths

Hello Heidi,

Thank you for your email. Unfortunately we have not yet been able to significantly progress the review of existing
mechanisms to review stillbirths in the public health system. We have drafted an issues paper to canvass support to
strengthen legislation to remove any doubt that intrapartum stillbirths can be the subject of legally protected root
cause analysis. We hope to be able to finalise that paper for stakeholder consultation next month. I’m not sure of any
additional role for the Health Ombudsman and would suggest that would be best discussed directly with them.

Kind regards, Fiona
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Fiona Hawthorne PhD, Churchill Fellow
Principal Project Officer 
Patient Safety Unit | Health Systems Innovation Branch | Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division 
Department of Health | Queensland Government 
Level 2, 15 Butterfield Street, HERSTON, QLD 4006 
t. 07 3328 9716 
e. fiona.hawthorne@health.qld.gov.au | www.health.qld.gov.au

      

From: Heidi Carr [mailto:Heidi.Carr@justice.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Monday, 15 September 2014 4:59 PM 
To: Fiona Hawthorne 
Subject: Possible amendments to the Coroners Act 2003 regarding the investigation of stillbirths

Dear Fiona,

I am the officer within the Strategic Policy and Legal Services division of the Department of Justice and Attorney
General who is currently considering possible amendments to the Coroners Act 2003 regarding the investigation of
stillbirths. As you may recall, Amber Manwaring was previously responsible for this matter.

I note that the Honourable Lawrence Springborg MP provided a
submission dated 13 August 2013 in relation to this matter, and I just wanted to ascertain what, if anything, has
changed or improved since such time, and in addition to the previous mechanisms outlined, whether there is an
additional role for the Health Ombudsman regarding the investigation of stillbirths.

Kind regards,

Heidi Carr
Policy Advisor 
Strategic Policy 
Department of Justice and Attorney-General
Ph: 3239 6878

**************************************************************** 
Please think about the environment before you print this message. 

This email and any attachments may contain confidential, private or legally privileged information and may 
be protected by copyright. You may only use it if you are the person(s) it was intended to be sent to and if 
you use it in an authorised way. No one is allowed to use, review, alter, transmit, disclose, distribute, print or 
copy this email without appropriate authority.

If you are not the intended addressee and this message has been sent to you by mistake, please notify the 
sender immediately, destroy any hard copies of the email and delete it from your computer system network. 
Any legal privilege or confidentiality is not waived or destroyed by the mistake.   

Opinions in this email do not necessarily reflect the opinions of the Department of Justice and Attorney-
General or the Queensland Government.   

It is your responsibility to ensure that this email does not contain and is not affected by computer viruses, 
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defects or interferences by third parties or replication problems. 
**************************************************************** 

******************************************************************************** 

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended 
recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it and you are not the intended recipient
(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error. 

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or review of this email is strictly prohibited. The 
information contained in this email, including any attachment sent with it, may be subject to a statutory duty 
of confidentiality if it relates to health service matters. 

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you have received this email in error, you are asked to 
immediately notify the sender by telephone collect on Australia +61 1800 198 175 or by return email. You 
should also delete this email, and any copies, from your computer system network and destroy any hard 
copies produced. 

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies on it; 
any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and/or publication of this email is also prohibited. 

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not contain malicious 
software, Queensland Health does not accept responsibility for the consequences if any person's computer 
inadvertently suffers any disruption to services, loss of information, harm or is infected with a virus, other 
malicious computer programme or code that may occur as a consequence of receiving this email. 

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the 
Queensland Government. 

********************************************************************************** 

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
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